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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Office of Strategic Initiatives

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall
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Division of Planning
Division of Energy

www.nh.gov/osi

June 1,2020

His excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

I) Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract with
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (VC #17751 1), Kecne, NH, in the amount of $242,960.00 for the
federal Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) effective July I, 2020, upon approval of Governor and
l':xecutive Council, through June 30, 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in FY 2021 upon
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget:

Office of Strategic Initiatives. Low Income Weatherization I'Y 2021
01 -02-02-024010-77060000-074-500587
Grant for Pub. Assist & Relief $242,960.00

2) Further request authorization to advance to the vendor $38,752.00 of the above-referenced contract
amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of U.S. Department of Energy's (USDOB) grant guidance
(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization Assistance
Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for the
Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), and their historical performance delivering the weatherization
program.

OSI is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization Assistance Program,
funded by a grant from USDOB. The objective of the program is to weatherizc homes to reduce energy
consumption and energy costs in eligible low income households. Priority is given to households that
include people who are elderly, disabled, or children, and households with high energy usage. OSI contracts
with New Hampshire's Community Action Agencies to provide weatherization services at the local level.
OSI estimates that the USDOB's WAP grant award to New Hampshire will contribute to the weatherization
of approximately two hundred and two (202) homes in the State.

The requested advance of funds will enable Southwestern Community Services, Inc. to operate the program
between monthly reimbursements from the State, and may only be used for allowable program expenses as
detailed in Bxhibit C.

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
G&C 06/24/2020



Mis Bxccllcncy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the l lonorabic Council

June 1,2020
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In ihc event Tederal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
contract.

Kespeclfully submitted,

Jared Chi

Director ,

X

Attachments

G&C 06/24/2020



FORM NUMBER R-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This a^eenieht.and all of its attachments shall b^ome public upon submission to Govenio'r and
Executive Council for apprbs'sl. Any information that is private, cdnndential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the cpntraci.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Nanie
OfUce of Strategic Inlti^ives

1.2 Slate Agency Address
107 Plcasahi Sp-cet, Johnson Hall
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

63'Communiiy Way, PO Bo.v 603, Kecne, NH 03431

1.5 Contractor Rhone

Number

(603)352.7152

1.6 Account Number

b 1.02.02.0240 i 0.77060000-
500587

1.7 Completion Date
iunc3p;;202l

1.8 Price Limitation

$242,960.00

1.9 Contracting OfTicq- for State Agency
Kirk Stone. Weatheri^ion Prpgnun Manager

I.I0 State Agency Telephone Number
((503);271-2I55

1.11 Cdn^ctpr Signature 1.12 Name and Titlc of Contractor Signatory
John A. Manning, CEO

1.13 ^tc AgciKy^&tgRature 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

C-mCo\nC, ̂]\rtc\is\r
1.1 S/'Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel/ifdpp//c"aWc)

/ By: Director. On:

1.16 Approval by the Attomey.Gcncral (Forhii Substtmcc and Execution) (if applicable)

1.17 Approval by the.Govcnior.tmd Executive Council (if applicable)

G&G Item riumbcr: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES to BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New
Hampshire, acting through (he agency identified imblock l.i
F^Siate"). engages contractor identified in block 1,3,
("Contractor") to perform, and the Cbnitractpr shall perform^ the
work, or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
descriM in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECrrVE DATE/COMPLETION,OF'SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to ihc
contrary, and subject to the approval of the'Governor and
^ecutive Council of ihe'Statc of New. Hampshire,, if applicable.
ihis.Agreement. and all obligations ofthe parties hereunder. shall
become elective on the date the Govempr and Executive
Counclhapprpve this Agreement as indicated in.block i.i?,
unless no such approval is required. in uliich case the Agreement
shall become effectiyc on the ̂ te the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in bipck 1.13 ("Effective.Date"),
3.2^ If the Contraaor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Serviccs performed by the Contrador prior to
the .Effective Date shall performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, wd In the event that this Agreement does not becpme
effective, the State shall have no liabillt>' to the. Contractor^
including without limitatlqn. imy obligation to pay -the
Contractor for any cosu Incurred or Scrylces performed.
Contractor must complete all Serviccs by (he Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONblTIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Nolwlhstanding any provision of -this Agreement to,, the
contrary'* all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and coiitinued appropriation of
funds-affected by any-state or fc^rol icgislativc'^or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the

appropriation or ayailabili^ of funding for dtis Agreement and
the Scope for Scrviccs.provided iri;^HlBIT B. in whole or in
pqii. In no event shall die Stotc be liable fp
hereunder |n c.yc«s of such avallabie appropriated funds, In;the
event of a reduction pr termination of appropriated funds, the
State-shall have'thc right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right ip f^uceor
terminate ihe.Services under this Agreemeni immediately .upon
givingthc Contractpr.notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be.rcquircd'tp ir^fcr funds ifrom any other
account or source to the,-Account identified in block 1.6-in the

event funds In that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
payment.
5.1 The contract price.method of payment, terms of payment
are identified and mpre.panicui^ly described ip EXHIBIT C
which is incorpbraied herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and ihc complete reimbursement to iHc CpnUTJCtpr for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor In the
performance hereof,, and shall be the onlyand the complete

compensation lo'the Comractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State, re^rvcs the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under,this Agreement (hose
liquidated amounts required or permitted by .N.H. RSA 80:7
throu^ RSA 80:7< or any other provision,'of^ law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contraiy, and: notwithstanding unexpected circumstance. In no
event shall the total of.all payments authorized, or acduilly made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation sctTorth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMRLOYMEW
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the .Services, the
Contracpor shall comply with all .applicable- statutes, laws,
regulations; and orders of federal, state, .county, or, municipal
authorities uiiich impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited-tp, civil rights and equal
employment opportunit)' laws. In addition; ifthis-Agrecment is
funded in any pan by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with allTederal executive orders,:rui«, regulations;,
-and statutes, and with any rufes, regulations:and;guidellnes.as the
State, or the United States issue to ,implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also.comply .with all applicable intelle.ctual
property laws,.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Cpntn^or shall not.
discriminate against employees ;or'applicants Tpr;employment
because pf race, color, religion, creed,age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination;
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the ,Siate;0,rJJnited States-
access to any of the Coniractpr's lx>o^ recprds ond accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining cpmpllance with all rujes, regulations
and. orders, and the covenants, terms, and conditions of this;-
Agrccmcnt.

7. PERSONNEL

*7.1 The Contractpf shall lU its own expend pipvldealfperso.nncl
necessary' to pcrform'thc .Services, "The, iCpntractor warrants that
all perwnnel engaged in the .^lyices shall be-qualified to
pcrfprm the Services, and.^all ,te properly licenMd and
:otherwise;authorized to dp ̂  undcr alfapplicable laws.
7:2 Unlew otherwise authorized In writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period pf six (6) months after the
Completion Ciate in block i.7, the Contractor.shall not hire, and
•shall not permit any subcontractor or other per^n, firm or
corporaiion wnlh whom it is engaged In a combined .efrpri;.tp
pcrforrn the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or ofTiclal. who is materially involved m the procurement^
•administration or perfonnance of this Agreement, This
provision shall survive termination of this Agrecrnent.
7.3 The Contracting Officerspecified in block l ]9.,prhis prher
successor, shallbe the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of .this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Slate.
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8. event of pefault/remedies.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of ̂e
Contractor shall constitute an event.'of default hereunder ("Event

ofDcfault'b:
8.1.1. failure to. perform the Services satisfactorily or on.
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder. and/or
8.1.3 ftilyrc to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default wd requiring it to be remedied within, in the.absence of
agreater or lesser specification of time, thirty (3()) days from the
date of the notice: and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2;give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default .and suspending a|l payments to be .made under this
Agreement wd ordering that the portion of the conti^ price
which w^uld otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period fipm the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has.cured the Event;of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor,
'8.2 J give.the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set;o^ against-any other obligaiions .the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; wd/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a \yritten notice specifying the Event of
Dcfauji. treat, the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at, jaw or. in.equity. or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemcd a w^iv^ of its rights with
reg^ to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Ev'ent of
Delhult. hlo express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be dMmcd a.waiver ofthe right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Defhult on the portpf the Contractor.

9. tERMINATlON.
9.1 Notwithstandihg paragraph 8, the State may,, at its. sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pan. by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is e.xercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this . Agreement for
^y reason other than the cpmplclion of the Services, the
Contractor shall; at the State's discretion, dejiver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of tcrfnlnailpn. a report ('Termination Report") dcscfibing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract pnce eanied. to
and including the date of terminaiion. The.form. subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those ofany Final Report dc^ribed in the attached
EXHIBIT b. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 da)*^ of notice of early teniiinailon, develop and

Page

.submit to the State a Tttnsiiidn Plan for services under' the
Agreement. ' •

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRKERVATION.

10.1 As used In this Agreement, the word "data-' shall mean all
information and thlngs developed or obtained during Uie
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of,.this
Agreement, includthg. but not limited to, all studies,-reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rcprckluctlons, drawings, onatyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

I0.2AII data and any proper^ which has been received fVom
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Stat^ and
shall be.retumed.to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality ofdara shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Di^lpsure of data requires
pnor uTitlcn approval of the Slate.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO tHE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither on agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the: Contractor nor .any of jits
officers.'employees,.agents or members shall.have authority to
bind ihe.$iaie or receive any benefits, workers'..co.mpcnsailbh or
other emoluments provided by the State tolts emplbyees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELEGATlbN/SUBCONTRACn"S.
1211 The Contracior shal! not assign, or otherwise tnmsfer any
interest in lhis Agreement without the prior written noUce;,which
shall be provided to the State at le^t fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For puiposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall. 'constitute
assignment, "Change of Control" means, (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of relttted transactions In
which a third party.' together with its .affiliates; becomes the
direct or indirect owncr:or fifty percent (50%) or morcvof the
yoiing shares or similar equity interest^ or cpmb.incd voiing
power o.f the Contractor, or (b) the.salc:of;ali br.sub«.httitialiy all
of the assets of the Conttacior.
12.2 None of, the- Services shall, be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and conwnt.of the State,
The State Is entitled to cppics of alt subcontracts and assignment
Bgreements.and shall not be bound .by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreernent to which it Is not a
par^.

13. INDEMNIFICATION! Unless otherwise exempted bylaw,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Stale, Jts
officers and employees, fh)m and against any and.all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injui^' or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims as^rted against
the State, its officers or cmplpyces. which arise out of (or which .
rnay be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omission of the
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Contractor, >or.:subconirQCtors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless, or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph IS. NonviihstandingtheToregoing, nolhinghcrein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
Immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby rcserved.to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously, maintain in force, and shall require any
isubcpntroctpr or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability Insurance'against oll claims
of bodily injur)', death :or property damage, in amounts of not
less ihan.^SI,6<M,000 per occurrence and .$2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering ajl property
subject to.subparagraph 16:2 herein, in an,amount not less than
80% of the \\^ole replacement yalue of the proper^'.
14.2 The policies described in subparagreph i4. l herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for usc in (he State
pCNcw Hampshire by ihe .N.H. pcpartment of Insurance; and
Issued by Insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Conu^cior shall: furnish to the Contracting .Ofilcer
identified in block .1.9, or-his or her successor, a certificaie(sj of
insurance for all Insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall al^ furnish to the Conu^cting OfTicer identified
in block 1;9, or his or her successor, certincate(s) o.f insurance
for aM rcnc\\'al(s) pf,insura.nce required under this Agreement no
later than (en (10) days prior to the expiration date;'of each
insurance policy. The cerlificaie{s) of. insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are'incorporated herein by
reference.

15, WORKERS* COMPENSATION.
IJ.TBy signing ihls.agrecmcnt, the'Cpntractpr agrees, certifies
and u-arrants that the Contractor is in compliance with.or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28i-A C'ii^orkers'
Compensation "),
15'.i2 To the extent the Contractor Is subject to the. requirements
of N:H. RSA chapter 28UA, Contractor shall maintain, and
require arty su^ontractor or ossignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' CompcnMilon In connection with
actlylties which the person proposes to undertake piirsuant to this
AgreeiTieTil. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in b|ock 1.9, pr his or her successor, proof of Workers*
Compensatipn in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A, and any applicable rcnewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and arc incoiporatcd herein by reference; the State
shall not be i^ppnsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcpniraclor or employee of Contractor,
which might -arise under applicable'State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE! Any notice'by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been diily delivered or given at.thc-tiihe
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid^ in a United States
Post Office address^ to the i^ies at the address given in
blocks 1.2 and .1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement,may be amended, waived
or dtschar^d.only by an msirumcnt'ln wfiiing signed by (he
paiiies hereto and only after approval of such' amefidment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor wd Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless ho such approval is ,required
under the.circumstahccs pursuanl'tb State lawj rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in^ accordance with the
laws, of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upbh and
mures'to'thC;benefii of the paiiics.and their respective successors
and,assies. The wording used in this Agreement is the wbrdihg
chosen by the.parties to'express their mutual intcni;,and no riiic
of construction shall be applied.against or In favor.ofany party.
Any actions arising-out of this Agreement shall be brou^t and
malntafncd In New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdictibn thereof.

19. conflicting terms. In' the event of a conflict

betwcenrthe terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A)'and/or anachments and amendment thereof, the terihs of the
P0.7,(as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. JHIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall' not be
construed to conferany such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agrccmeht'ore
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall, in no way!be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid ih'ihe
{ntei^Dretation, construction or meaning of the provisions.of (his
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set.forth in the attached EXHIBIT A'arc'tncorpcraied
herein by reference.

23; SEVERABILITY. In the cyent any ofthe provisions of this
Agreement ore held by a court-of competent Jurisdiction to be
contrarj' to.anystaie or federal law, the remaining provlslons.of
this Agreemeni will remain in full force and efteci.

.24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
e.xecutt^ in a numt^ of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the panics, and supersedes all, prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. 2 CFR 200 as amended (Uniform Adminlstfative RequiremeniSi Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards). 10 CFR 440 dated February' 1.2002 (Weatherization Assistance Program), the New
•Hampshire Weathcnzatibh Assistonce Progrom State Plan, Weatherization Assistance Prbgra'nv Policies and
Procedures, and Field Giiide are all considered legally binding and enforceable documents under this
contract. OS! reserves ihc.righi to use any legal remcdy.at its disposal including, but not limited to,
disallowance of co'^, withholding of funds', suspension of agency personnel, disbarment of agency
pei^phnel, disbarment of agencies and/pr subcontractors from present.or future contracts, and such other
legal remedies as determined to be appropriate by the New Hampshire Department of Justice in the
ehforc'emehtdf rules and regulations pertaining to the Weatherization Assistance Program.

2. An.oudit shall.be made at'the end of the Contractor's fiscal year in accordance Avith 2 CFR;200, Subpart F -
Audit Requirements. This audit import shajl include a schedule of itveriues and expenditures by
contract or gr^t number of allexpcnditures during the Coiitractdr's fî l year. The Contractor shall
utilize a competitive.bidding process to, choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

The audit report shall include a schedule of prior year's questioned costs along with a.response to the cunrnt
status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters'written as a result of the audit
along with the audit report shall be forivarded to OSl within one month of the time of i^eipt by the
Contractor accompanied by an action pjan. if applicable, for each finding or questioned cost.

3. The following ptuagraph'shall be added to para^pH 9 6f.the;gencrDl provisions:

'^9,4 All negotiated contracts (except those of $5^000 or less) awarded by the Subgrantee shall allow
OSl, DOE, the Comistrollcr General of the United States, or any duly a'uihbrized representatives,access
to any books; documents, papers, arid records of the Subgr^tee or their subcontractors, which are
directly pertinent to the Weatherization Assistance Program for the purpose of making audits,
examinations, excerpts and transcription."

4. In paragraph 10 of the,general provisions, the following sentence.shall be deleted: "The form; subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Tcrminatibn Report shall be identical to those of any Final R;epqrt
described in EXHIBIT A."

5. TTie costs charged under this contract shall be determined as ailowable lindcr the eost principles detailed in 2
CFR;20p Subpart E- Cost Principles.

6. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shajl be retained by the Contractor for 3 (three)
years from the, date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for awards that are renewed quarterly or
annually, from the date of the submission of the qiiorterly or annualTtnancial rc^rt, ds stated in 2 CFR
200.333 - Retention Requirements for Records.-

7. Kirk Stone. Wcatherizatibn-Program Manager of OSl. has been designated with the reisponsibility for
overseeing this contract.

Exhibits A.J
initial
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8. The following paragraphs shall be added lo.lhc general provisions:

"25. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. Ii is undcrslood and agreed between thc parties that
ho portion of the "Grant" funds may be u^d for the purpose of obuining additional Federal funds
under any other law. of the United States, except if authorized undier that law."

"26. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICAJIiONS. The following are ahached and signed: Certification Regarding
DrugrFrcc Workplace Requirements; Certification Re^rding Lobbying: Certification Regarding
Deb^eni, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters: Certification Regarding the Americans With
Disabilities Act Compliance; Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke:,Assurance of
Compliance Nbndiscrimination.in Federally Assisted Pro^ams; and Certificatibn Regarding the
Federal funding Accountebility and Transparency Compliance.

"27. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT. All contracts and subgranB in excess of $2,000.00 for
constructipn or repair shall include a provision for cqmpliancc-with Cppeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18
use 87il) as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR,Tart 3). tliis Act provides
that each contractor, subcontract or subgrantee shall be prohibited froifi inducing, by any mean^ any
person employed in the construction, completion or repair of.public work, to give up any part of the
corhpehsatioh to which he is btherXvise entitled. The subgrantee shbiild repbil-all suspected violations
toOSI."

"28. PROCUREMENT. Subgrantee shall comply with all prbviisioris of 2 CFR 200 Subpart'D- Post
Federal Aw^ Requirements - Procurement Standards, with special emphasiS;on financial
procurement ( 2 GFR 200 Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property managerhent (2;CFR 200
Subpart D - Post Federal Award Requirements - Property Standards)"

"29. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required i^ports.and.rcimburscrhent'rcqucsts.shall be
submitted to the State within sixty (60) days of the cpinpleiipn date (Agreement Block 1.7)."

Exhibits

Inili
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Souihwesicrii Gommuniiy Services. Inc., hereinafter 'Hhe Contractor' Or "Subgrantee," agrees to perform
weatheriutiqh services and all additional services and other work necessary to provide Weatherizotion
Assistance iProgram (WAP) services to eligible low income individuals in accordance with the regulatibns set
forth by;the U. S, Department of Energy in 10 CFR 440 dated Febiiiary 1 ,2002, and in 2 CFR 200 as
amended, and in accordance with the provisions and procedures contained in the most recent New Hampshire
Weatherization Assistance Program (NHWAP) State Plan. Policies and Procedui^ Manual, Field Cuide. arid
as other>vise administered by the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI).

Periodically OSI may issue Subgrantee Guidance (SG) and Subgrantee Notices (SN) or other clarifications as
necessary. All.such.changes shall be considered as incorporated into the NH Weatherization Pplicics and
Procedures Manual and.Field Guide. The eontractor agrees to alter the Program procedures in accordance
with a SG, SN or other instriictibns.

The Subgrantee agrees to abidc:by changes in the NH Weatherization Assistance.Program designed to
improve prograrri deliveiy and further agrees to perform Weatherization Prograrri services in.a manner that
will successfully interact with utility administered cnerg>' ctficicncy programs for Ipw-incpme.households in
order to provide the bestiserviccs for New Harnpshire's low-incomc hdu^holds.

2. The contract peribd, to be known as Program Year 2020 (Py20), will corhmencc pri Jiily 1, 2020 and will
have a completion date of June 30,2021, subject to the approval of Governor and Executive Council.

3. Plans for cxpchditure of funds for Training and Technical Assistance, Prpgr^ Implemeiitation, and
,Leveraging Activities must be defined in the Contractor's ManagcmentTplan (CMP) arid approved by'i.OS!
Rcpuests'to deviate frbrh the plan must be made in writing in advance, arid approved.by OS! as pre^ribed in
the NH Policies and Procedures Manual.

1

I  4; In'PYI9. Goritractor agrec,s.lo.cpmplete Weatherization Ser\'ices on iwcnty-c|ght (28) dwelling units
according to the standards outlined in the most recent NH Weatherization Policies and Procedures Manual
arid Field Giiide.

f

i  (a) Weatherization Services are intended to increase the ener©' efTiciency of the home^ and to improve the
'  home's comfort and,safety. A certified energ>' auditor first performs a NHWAP ener^'.audit on-the
'  horrie using scientific test equipment. Specific energy conser\'ati6ri measurcs.arid heating source repairs
I  aro.thcn implemented in o.rtcr of priority and cost effectiveness. This Integrated activity is carried out in
[  accordance vyith provisions and procedures outlined in the most recent NH Pdlicics'and;Proccdurcs

r  Manual.and Field Guide.

)

I  (b) The minintum nunibcr of dwellirig units arid the amount of funds to be e.xpended-shall cpriforrii to the
provisions ofthis contract and shall be incorporated into the CMP. DeviationS'Of more than 20% from
expected dwelling unit goals in any:givcn quarter may result in a reductiori'ofthe contract amounts and a

i  reallocation of funds to other contractors.

5. In'occordance with the US DOE's 'Quality Work Plan" (QWP) arid the provisions of Weatherization
Program Notice (WPN) .15-4
fhttD://\nvw.waDiac.ore/dnta/filcs/\Vcbsitc docs/Govemmcnt/Guidnncc/20l4/WPN-15-4.ndf>. beginning
April 1,2015, Contractor must have regular and reliable access to properly trained and certified Quality

E.xhiblts
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Control lnspector(5), available as either staff or contractors; able to fully function in that capacity. This
contract provides funding for'contlnucd training and technical assistance sufricient to allow thc Contractor to
secure and maintain the skilled personnel neccssarj' to meet the rcquiremcntsdf WPN, 15-4.

6. All work performed under the Wcathcrization Assistance Program (WAP) in New Hampshire, using federal
money from any WAP program year, must meet the minimum specifications defined in the US Department of
Energy's 'TJuality Work Rlan'^ (Q,WP) and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). Details are
presented in the Standard Work Specifications (SWS) for Home Encrgj' Upgrades referred to in US DOE
Weatherizatipn program Notice 15,^ (see link in paragraph 5, above), as weH as in thc Ne\v Hampshire
Wcathcrization Assistance Program's Field Guide, as most recently amended, which goycms; WAP work in
New Hampshire: Contractor-must ensure, and be able to document for OSl. that all staff and contractors, who
will perform Weotherizatlon >yorik arc properly trained and certified for.ihat work and| have been informed
that their work must meet the requirements of the SWS or dwelling units will not be considered complete and
reimbursement will not,occur.

E.^hibiis
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideraiion of ihe saiisfactpry performance of the Scr\'ices, the .State agrees to pay the Contractor,
Southwestern Corhmunit)' Ser\'ices, Inc.. in.total, the sum of:

$ 242,960^00 (which hereinafter is referred to as the "Contracted Amount"), of which
S 24,423.00 rhay bccxpended for Adminisirationi
S  17,059.00 may be expended for Training & Technical Assistance.
$  7,719.00 may be expended for Health & Safety measures,
$ 193,759.00 (the balance), to be ispent oh wcalherizaiion activities (Pro^m Activity) and.
S 38,752.00 will be issued as a cash advance,

Drawdowns fixjm the total contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor orijy. after written
documentation of cash need.is submiited to OSI: Disbursement of the contitcled amount sh^l be made
in accord^ce with the prpcedures established by the State and 2 CFR 200.305(b) on an-advance basis;
lirhited to mirtimumyamounts neededt and be timed to be in accordance with the actual, immediate cash
requirements of the Contractor in carrjing.out the purpose of the program. The (Contractor must make
timely payments to (sub)contract6r:s jhjaccprd^ with the contract provisions. Contractor shall submit
a payment request to OSI for each month of the contract period. Pa;ptent.requests from .Contractor
shall be received at OS! no latenthan the 15''' day of each month, ,or the first business day following the
1.5"'day.

Admihi^faiive cpstt are'provided to cover a specified number of unit completions at miriiinal standards.
Administrative funds may be pro-rated by OSI if production unit completions do not meet exp^tcd pi^uctio
goals.

OS! may,:as a function of its admlnistraiiye ovcrsighi, modify contracted budget amounts as hecessaiy to ensure
the efficient operation of the'NHWAP as long as these modified expenditures do not excecdrthe Contracted
Amount total as specified above.

All obligations of the State, including the conti nuance of any payments, arc contingent upon the availability and
continued appropriation of.funds,for-lhc services to be.provided.

Exhibits
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Cbntra'ctor'identificd iii Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees io comply \s'iih the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub, L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq;), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the Getieral Provisions execute the following Ceriificatipn:

CERTiFICATION\REGAj^ING.DRliG^FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECUlUtV

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub^ L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D;'41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The Jflhuar>' 31, 1989- regulations
were amended and published as Part, II of the May 25, 1^0. Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (arid by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to awtird, that they will
maintain a dhig-frec workplace. Swtion;30j 7.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee'(and by inference,
sub-grantees and subrContraciors).that is a State may elect to make'one certiHcation to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each gi^rit during the federal fiscal year covered by thccertificatibn.
The certificate set out below is a material represctitmion,of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification of violatibn of the certification shall be grounds for suspensibri of payments,
suspension or termination of yanis, of gbvemnient:wide suspension or debarment. Contractors usirig this fbim
should send it to:

Director, New Hampshire Office Of Strategic Initiatives,
|07 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall, Concord, NH 03301

1  (A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a staternent notijying employees that the unlawful manufacture, di^fibutjpn,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantec-s workplace
and specifying'the actions that vvill be taken a^irist employees for violation of such prbhibitiph;

I  (b) Establishing an ongoing dnigrfrcc awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
r  (2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
!  (3) Any available drug coun^ling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance prpgrarns; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violafioris occurring
F  in the \TOfkplace;

'  (c) Making itia requifcmcnt that each employee to be engaged in the performVrice of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

I  , "
[  (d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) thati as a coriditibri of
j  employment under the grant; the employee will—
I

j  (1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
j  (2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
i  statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

--Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDTNG DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATTVE 1 - f6r GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, contld

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

liS bEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

(e) Noiifying ihe agency in wriiing, within'ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employVes must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
pfTicer on who^ grant activity the conyic^d employee was working, unless the Federal agency
has designated a central point for (he receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identificaiidh numbcr^s) of each affected grant:

(() Taking one^ofthe following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—

• " ■ y ■

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an'employee, up to and including
terrnination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In'a dKig abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program;approyed for such purpo^s by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith cffort to continue to maintain a drug:free workplace through'irnplemeniation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d),.(c)» and (0-

(B) llic grantee may insert in the space provided below the sitc(s) for the performance of work'dohe in
cohnection WitH the specific grant.

place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list wch location)

63GOmmunii)'Way
Kcene. NH 03431

Check D if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Southwestern Communit>' Services, Inc. July 1.2020-June30.2021

Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification

John A. ing, CEO

Namc^d Tjtle of Authorized Contractor Representative

Dateohtractor Representative SignMure

Initi
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
iSection 319 of Public Law 101^121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the GontractoVs rcpresehiaiive. as identified in Sections 1.1 1 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF homeland SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Services ̂ lock Grant
Low-Income Home,Energ>' Assistance Program
HRRP Program

Weatherizatlon Assistance Program

Contract Period; July :l, 2020 - June 30, 2021
The undersigned certifies, to the b<st of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated Tunds.have been paid or will.te paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an,ofTicer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer oremployee of Cohj^ess, or an cmplpyec of a Member of Congi^s in connection
withthe awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract,.gi^t, loan, or cooperative.agreement (an'd by.specific rfiehtioh siib-grantec or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
infiucncingor attcmpting to influence an officer or employee of any'agency, a Member ofCongress, an
officer or employee ofCongress, or on employee ofa Member of Congress, in cohn«lioh with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention.sutngrantee or sub:
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Fortn LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report
"Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, atuiched and identified as Stimdanl ExhibitE-I.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language pfUiis certiflcanpn be included in the award document
for subfawards at all ticrs (including subcontracts, sub-^nts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) atid that all sub-rccipiehts shall certify and disclose accordingly:

This certification is a material rcprcsentalipn.of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered intp. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352. Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject t^.a^ivil penolt}' of not less than SIQ.OOO and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

John A. Manning. CEO
Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

South\>festem 'Communit>' Services, Inc. 'Cjhjlxf i-o
Contractor Name Date

Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHFRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 reg^dihg Debannent, Suspension,
^d Other Rcspo.nsibilit>' Matters, and further agrees to have the Cpntractor-s representative, as Identified in
Sections i.l l and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Insfruclions/pr Certljlcation

(1) By signing and submitting this,proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set oiit below.

(2) The; inability of a perspn to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessaty, the prospcctive.'participant shalKsubmit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification; The cenificatiph or explanation will be cbhsidered in connection
with thc NH Pffice of Strategic initiatives,(OSI) determination whether to enter intp this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primaiy participaiht to furnish a certification or aii explanation shall
dj^uality such pcraqn from participation in this mnsaction. .

(3) The certification in this clause is a matcrial representation of fact upon which.reliance was placed when OSI
determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later deterrhined that the prospective primary participant
knowingly rendered an enrpnepuscertification, in addition to oiher„remedies available tp the Federal
Government, OSI may terminate this transaction for.cause or default.

(4) -The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OSI agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted.if at any timc.lhe prospective primary participant learns that,its certification
was.eitorieous when submitted or has t^ome erroneous by reason of changed cifcumstahces.

(5) The.tcrms "covcred transaction," "debarred." "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
I  'T^rticiparit," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal;" and "voluntarily excluded,"

as used .in.this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage ̂ tions of the rules
I  implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.
I  (6) the,prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal.(contract) that, should the proposed
i  covered tmhsaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a

pei^n Nvho'ls debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluiitariiy excluded fro.m paiti.cipation in this
'  covered transaction, unless authorized by OSI.

(7) The prois^ctiVe primary' pafticlparit further agrees by submitting this propo^l that it will jnclLide the clause
I  titl^ Certification Regarding pebarment. Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier

Covered Transactions," provided by OSI, without mcklificatioh, in all lower tier cbVcred tranMctions and in
all'solicitatipns.for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
j  covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, of ihvolunfarily excluded from the covered

tran^ctipn, unless it knows that the certification is erronco.us. A participant may decide the method and
I  frequency by which it deiennines ihe'^eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
!  check the Nonrprocurement List (of excluded parties).
J  (9) Nothing cpntoined in the foregoing shall.be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
S  to lender in good failli tJie certification required by this clause. The knowledge and irifOrriialion of a
I  participant is not required to c.xcecd thatwhich is nonnally.posses»d by a prudent person in the ordinary

course ofbusiness.dealings.
\  (10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if'd participant in a covered

■  transaction knowingly enters into a lowertier covered iranMCtion with a person who is suspended, debarred,
t  ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
^  available to the Federal govemrheht, OSI may termiiiate this transaction for cause or default.

!  ̂Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENt» SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters * Primary Covered-Transactions.

(1) the prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its kiiowlcdge and belief,-that it and its
priiicipals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department oragency:

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proi^'sal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civij Judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a,criminal pfTense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performinga public (Federal, State or local) transaction
or a.contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State ahtilfust statutes or
cpmtnissipn of cmbezzicment Ihcf^ forger)', bribery, falsificatipn or destruction of records,
.making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are hot presehtiy indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a goveriimehtal entity
(Federal,.State or tpcal) with commission of aiiy of the pffenws enumerated in paragraph (I) (b)
of this.ccrtificatibn; and

(d) have not, within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal, had.one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) tcmiinaied for cause prdefault.

(2) Where the prospective primar)' participant is unable to certify to ahy'of the statements in'ihis
cehificaiipn, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, IneligibUity arid
Voluntary ExclusionLower Tier Covered Tiahsdctibhs-

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tjer Panicipants)

By.signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 GFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge iuid belief tliat it and its.principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended^ proposed for.debarmeht, declared ineligible; or voluntarily
^clu'd^ from participation in this transaciipn by any federal deptuiment or agency.

(b) wherie the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to anydf the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to thistproposal (contract).

The prospective, lower tier participant further agrees by submitting thisprpposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding.Debarment, Suspension, lne!igibil|ty, and Voluntaiy Exclusion • Lower
Tier Covered'ITansactions,'* without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tipr^v/rc.d transactions.

John-A. Manning,'CEO
eprescntative Signature Contractor's Representative Titlentrac or

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Contractor Niame Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INTTIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERtrFICATION REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Coniracior identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
repre^niative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to e.vecute the following
certification:

By siting and submitting this propoMl (contract) the Contractor agrees to m^e reasonable effpi^ to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of I. WO.

John A. Mannings .CEO

pntraclor Repre^niativc Signahjre

SouUiwestem Community;$erviccs, Inc.

Contractor's Representative Title

t02JL,

Gdntracior Name Date

^hibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227; Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 199^, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facilil>''routinely owned or lea^d or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of hwlth, day care, education, or library services to
children;.undcr the age of 18, ifthe services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or
local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law docs not:apply to children's scr\'iccs provided jn private residences, facilities.funded solely by Mwlicare
or Medicaid funds; and portions of facilities u^d for inpaticni drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil mpnetar>' penalty pf up to
SI OOP per day and^r theimposition of an administrative compliance order on the rcsponsibicentit>'.

By signing and submitting this application the applicaniygrantce certifies that it will comply with the
requirements ofiheAciI

The>applicant/gnLntcc.furthcragrocs that it-will require the language of this certificatioh be included in any
subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all subgrantees.shall certjfy accordingly.

John A. Manning, CEO.

ntractoriRcprescritatiyc Signature

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Con^ctor'sReprcscntative Tirte

Contractor Name Date

Inltia
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All Other Hditions Arc Obsolete

NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

\ STANDARD EXHIBIT I

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISGRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED
PROGRAMS

0MB Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15.minutes per response,
including the time for rcvicwin^g insli^ctions, searching existing data sources, gathering and rnaihtainihg the da^
needed,'and completirjg-and reviewing the collection of infprrnotion. Send comment regarding this burden
estimate, or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden;,to
Office of Information Rewurcw Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight,"Records Management Division, HR-
422 - GTN, Paperwork Rcductibn Project (1910-0400), U.S. Department of Energ>'. 1()00 independetice Avenue,
S.W., Washington, be 20585;'and to the Office of Management and Budget (0MB). Paperwork Reduction
Project (1.910-0400), Washington, 00^20503.

Soulhwestem Community Services, Inc.- (Hereinafter called the^Applicant") HEREBY AGREES to comply
with Tille VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Section 16 of the Federal Energj' Administration
Act of 1.974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 of the Ehcrgj' Reorganization Act of 1974 (Pub. L; 93-438). Title IX
of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568,.and Pub. L. 9)l-482),
Section i504 pfthc Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L..94t
135), Title VIIl of the Civil Rights Act bTl968 (Pub. L. 90-284), the Department of Erierg)'. Organization Act of
1977 (Pub. L. 95-91), the Ehef^ Conscr>'atipn arid Production Act of 1976, as amended, (Pub. L, 94-385) and
Title 10, Code of Federal-Regulations, Pan 1040. In accordance with'the above laws and regulations issued
pursuant-thereto, the Applicant agrccsTo assure that no person in the United States shall, on the:ground of nice,
cbibn national origin, sex, age, brdi^bility, be e'xcliided from particlpatibn in, be. denied'the benefits of, br be
otherwise subjected to di»rimination under,any-.program or activity jn which the Applicant receives.Federal
assistance from the Department of Eherg>'.

Applicability and Period of Obligation
In the case of any ̂rvicc,'financi4l aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased,
or improved, with Federal assistance eictcnded to tiie Applicant by the Department of Encr^, this.aSsurahce
obligates the Applicant for the pcrii^ during which Federal assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of
such Mrvice, fmancial aid, equipment, propcrt)', or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee.for the-period
during which.Federal assistance.is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Applicant for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.lh ali:6ther c^s, this
assurance obligates the Applicant for the perjod during which the Federal assistance is extended to.the,Applicant
by the Department of Energj'.

EmpldyroenrPractlc^
Where a primaiy objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Applicant's'
employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from Federal assistance
extended by the Department, the Applicant agrees not to discriminate bii llic ground of^race, color, hatibnal
pngin, sex, age, Or disabiliQ', in jts employment practices. Such employment practices may include, but are not
limited to. recruitment, advertising; hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay,
training and participation in upward mobility' programs; or other forms of compensation and u»bf facilities.

SubrccipicDt Assurance

The Applicant shall require any.ihdividual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or

Initi
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subleases for the purpose bf p'rbvidin'g any service, financial aid. equipment, property, or structure to comply
wi^.laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the s.ubrKipient shall be required to sign a wrinen assurance
form; however, the obligatipn.ofboth recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the
collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data Collection and Access to Records

The Apislicaiit agrees to coiiipile and rhaintain information pertaining to proems or activities developed as a
result of the Applicant's receipt of Federal assistance from the Pepartmcnt of Energy. Such, information shall
include, but is;not limited to the following: (1) the manner in which.seiVices are or will be provided and related
data necessary for determining whether ariy persons arc or will be denied such ̂ rvices on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; (2) the population eligible to ̂ .sen'ed by race, color, national origin, sex, age and.disability; (3)
data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving
beneficiaries of the program where necessary to permit elective participation by beneficiaries unable to speaker
undcrstkid English: (4) the locatipri of exiting or proposed facilities connected with the program and rcjatcd
information adequate for determinirig ,whether the locaition has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying
access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race,
color, naitidhal origin, sex, age and.disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program;.and (6) any additional written data determined,by the Departmcnt of Energy to be relevant to the
obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws cited in the firstiparagraph of this assurance.

The Applicant agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Encrg>' regarding programs and activities
developed by the Applicant from the use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Applicant (including the physical plants, buildings, or other striictures).and all records; books,
accounts, and other purees pf information pcrtin^t to the Applicant's compliance wjih the cjyil righte la\vs
shall be made available for inspection during normal busitiess hours on request of an officer, or employee of the
Department of Energ>'specifically aiithorizcd to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
providi^ by the Director, Office of Givil Ri^ts, U.S. Department of Energ>'.

This:assurance is given in consideriation Of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
contracts (c.xcludihg procurcmcrit contracts), probity, discounts or other Federal assistance extended after the
date hereof, to the Applicants by the Department of Energ>', including installment payments^pn.account after
such data of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Applicant^recognizes
and agrees that-such Federal assistance will be extended iii reliance upon the representatiohs and.agrieements.
made in this assurance, and that the'United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of tljis
assurance. This assurance is binding on thc:Applicant, the successors, transferees,'and assignecs, as well as'thc
person(s) whose signatures appear below and who arc authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the
Applicant.

Applicant Certification

The Applicant certifies that it. has complied,,or that, within .90 days of the date of the grant, it wjll cotnpjy with
all applicable requirements of ID C.F.R. §, 1.0^.5 (a copy will be furnished to the Applicant upon written
request to DOE).

John A, Manning, CEO Signature Date >.*»

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
63 Gbmmunily Way, Kecne, NH
603-352-7512

Exhibit I
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than S2S,000 and ass'arded on of bfter October I, 2010, to
fcpdrt on data related to executive compensation and associated flrst-tier sub-grants pr S25.000 or more.
If the Initial award is below $25,000 but sub^queift grant modiificatipns rpsult in a total award equal to or
over $25,000. the. award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the awar^.

Inaccordance with 2 CFR Part \10{Reportin2 Sub<rward and^ecutive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire. Office of Strategic Initiatives must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirement:

Name of entity
Amount of award

Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for ̂ lits
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose ofthe funding action
Location of the entity'.
Principle place of performance

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)

?).
lOVTotal compensation'and namcs:of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govcmrhent, and 'those
revenues are. greater than $25M annuajly and

b. Compensation information is.not already available through reporting to the SEG.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which:
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section I .Tof the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 1.09-282 and Public Law MOf
252. and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Siibcnycnxl and Executive Compensation Information), further

agrees to have the Contractors repre^tatiye, as identified in Sectiotis 1.11 apd 1.12 pf the. Genefaj

Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agiws to,provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Office pfStrategic Initiatives and to comply with alLapplicable provisions of the Federal
Financjal^'ccbuntability and Transparency Act.

John A..Manning, CEO

(Contrejnbr Rcqfcseritative Signature)

Southxvestem Community Services, Inc.

(Authorized Contractor RepreseTitativeName'& Title)

(Contractor Name) (Date)

mctouniti

:

Contract

Dale

Page 1 of 2
Award #bE-EE0007935.
CFDA 81.042



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC.INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor ideniificd in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 081251381

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiMal year, did your business or organization
receive (I) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
jgrahts, sub-grantt", and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross i^venucs.
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants; subgrants. and/or cooperative agreements?

X  NO YES

If the aasn'er to. #2 above is;N0, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please anstfver the following:

3. Docs the public have access to iriformolion ateut the compcnsatipn.of the c.xccutives in yoqr business,
or organization through periodic reports filed under swtion i3(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(o), 78o(d))or section 6104 of the Iritemai Revenue Code of 1986?

NO YES

If tbc answer.to^3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to H3 above.is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation ofthe five most high|y compensated pfficers in ypur business or
organization are as-follows:

Name: Amount:

I  Name: Amount:
!  ■:

[  Name: Amount;
i
I

Nome: Amount:

t  Name: Amount:

Contractor imtiais:
Date:
Page 2 of;
Award #DE-EE0007935.
CI-DA 81.042



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccrctar)' of Stale of the Slate of New l-lampshirc, do hereby certify thai SOUTHWESTERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 19, 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccretar>' of Slate's ofilee have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65514

Certificate Number: 0004894084

%

la.

o

%

4"

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 16lh day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

(Corporate Authority)'

I, Elaine M. Amer , Clcrk/Sccrctary of Southwestern Commuriitv Services. Inc.
(iuune) (cbrpontion narac)

(hereinafter the "Gorporatipn"), a New Hampshire corooratioru hereby certify that;
(suu)

( ! ) I am the; duly elected and acUng Clcrk/Sccrct^ of the Cprporatipn; (2) I nwintain Md have custody. and am
fi^liar with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certi ficates with icspect to the
contehts of such books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on 2/18/2016

(date)

such authority to bc'in force and ctTTcct until June 30.2021.
(rontrtct (crminaticfn date)

The perMn(s) bolding^c below listed poritibh(s) are authorized to execute and deliver oh behalf of the
(i^rporatipn any contract or other instrument for the sale of product^and seryiccs:

Jpbh A, Manning CEQ_
(ootne) (position)

(name) (position)

(5) the meeting of thc^ard of Directors was held in accordance with New Hamoshirc ^
(state ormcorporation)

law and the by.^Iaws pf the Corporation; and said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the date Hereof.

|N WITNESS )^EREOF» I have hcrcimto set,my hand as thc Clcrk/Seaetary oTthe co.nwratigjp this
19 dav of Mav , 2020_.

STATE OF
GOUNTY OP

Clcrk/ScCrc

j 2020, before me, Sarah Crotcau the undersigned Officer,Qn:this l9 dav Of May
peradhallv;hppc^d Elaine M. Amer who acknowledged her/himself to be the Secretary
of Southwe^em C^mfnunitv Services Inc.. a corporation and that shc^e as such Secretary
bcing:auihorizcd to do:SO, executed the foregoing.instrument for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITh^SS WHE.^^^ I Hereimtp set my hand and official seal.

-i ci Rotary Public/Justice of the Peace•  \ %Commission Expiration Date:-j j 10A-j ■
1  ®



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATECMH/DDnrVYYl

5/19/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such ondorsementfs).

PR00UC6R

Clark - Mortenson Insurance

P.O. Box 606
KeeneNH 03431

CONTACT
NAMR:

603-352-2121 T-Sc. nc»; 603-357-8491
Ai^Fssr csr24admin(3>clark-mortenson.com

INSURERfSI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A: Philadelohia Insurance Comoany 0

INSURED SOUTHWESTERNCOM
Southwestern Comm Services Inc
PC Box 603

Keene NH 03431

INSURER B: Maine EmDlover Mutual Insurance Co.

INSURER c:

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:1524385197 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL

iNitn

SUBR

VYvn POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

IMM/On/YYYYl
POUCY EXP
IMM/DD/YYYYl LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GEXERAL LIABILITY

E I X 1 OCCUR

PHPK20006d2 600/2020 6/30/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE S 1.000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$100,000

MED EXP (Any one peraon) SS.OOO

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY $1,000,000

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2.000,000

POLICY 1 1 I 1 LOG
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 2.000.000

$

A AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY PHPK2000704 6G0/2020 6/30/2021 COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
(Ea acddentl *1.000 000

X ANY AUTO
BODILY INJURY (Per penon) $

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

SCHEDULED
n-os
W-OWNEO
rros

BODiLY INJURY (Par accident) $

X NC PROPERTY DAMAGE
/Per acdrlenil

$

$

A X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

PHU8$S1B7d eGO/2020 6G0/202I EACH OCCURRENCE S 2.000.000

AGGREGATE $2,000,000

OED ^ RETE?mON$innnn $

B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABiUTY y , ̂
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNEIUeXECUTIVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory In NH> ' '
If yoa, doicrlbo under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Nf A

3102800760 4/1/2020 4/1/2021 Y 1 PER OTH-
^ 1 STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACaOENT $500,000

E.L. DISEASE EA EMPLOYEE $500,000

E.L. DISEASE POLICY UMIT $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS'VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramariit Schodula. may bo tRaeltad if moro apaco la roquirod)

vyorkers comp laws apply for the state of: NH
all officers are included

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Office of Strategic Initiatives
Johnson Hall
107 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-8501

SHOULD AHY OF T>4E ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITN THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2014/01)

® 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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To the Board of Directors of certified public accountants
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. woiteboko • NORTUco.WAir

,, .. IXIVER • CONCORD
Keene, New Hampshire stratham

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, functional expenses, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing, standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained In Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairiy, in all
material respects, the financial position of Southwestem Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2019 and 2018, and the changes In their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information .

We have previously audited Southwestem Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2018 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated September 17, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2018, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which It has been
derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the
Schedules of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
infomiation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such iriformation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Information Is fairiy stated, In all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated
November 5, 2019, on our consideration of Southwestem Community Services, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report Is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestem Community
Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Novembers, 2019

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY31. 2019 AND 201B

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable

Interest receivable

Total cunent assets

PROPERTY

Land and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtui^

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investment In related parties
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

CURRENT UABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accaied expenses
Accrued payroll arrd payroll taxes
Other current liabilities
Refundable advances

Interest payable
Current portion of long term debt

Total cun^nt liabilities

NONCURRENT UABILITIES

Long tenn debt, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With dorx>r restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

882,187
1,245,826

51,722
112,000

45.547

2.337.282

19.188.791
554;976
220.291

19,964,058

7.938.217

12.025.841

198,728
59,102

849,334

62,996

SS4

1.170.544

$  15,533.667

391,613

119,620

233,900
138,740
180,994
49,547

227,221

1,341,635

9.086.445

10.428.080

4,922.671
182.916

5.105.587

$  1,086,895
1.059.922

35,019
112,000

45.547

2.339.383

14.438.178
549,305
39.617

15.027.100

4.880.952

10.146.148

88,706
188,523
517,853

51,996

384

847.462

$  13.332.993

124,085
206.178
250,692

135,573
193,931

216,438

1,126,897

8.273.983

9.400.880

3,787,422
144,691

3,932.113

$  15,533,667 $ 13.332,993

See Notes to Consolidated Rnanclai Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. tNC. AND RELATED CQMPANtES

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31.2019
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Government contracts

Program service fees
Rental income

Developer fee Income
Support
Sponsorship
Interest Income

Forgiveness of det)t
Miscellaneous

In-kind contributions

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support and
net assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services
Home energy programs
Education arid nutrition
Homeless programs
Housing services
Economic development services
Other p^rams

Total program services

Supporting activities
Mariagement end general

Total expenses

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

GAIN (LOSS) ON INVESTMENT IN UMfTED PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

UMITED PARTNERSHIP

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Rostiictions

$ 10,672.702

2.485.405

995,380

326,656

70.893

7.153

388,849

120,697
241.499

15,309.138

With Donor

Restrictions

87.608

15.396.744

5.236.483

2.659,830
1.994.872

2.319.865

721,370
894,986

13,829,406

1.880.406

15.709.812

(313,068)

(6.481)

16.116

(301,433)

3,787,422

1.436.682

125,833

125,833

(87,608)

38,225

38,225

144.691

2019

Total

$ 10.672.702

2.485.405

995,380

452,391

70.893

7.153

388,649

120.697
241.499

15.434.969

15.434.969

. 5.238,483

2,659,830
1,994.872

2,319,865

721,370
894.986

13,829.406

1.880.406

15,709.812

(274^843)

(6.481)

18.116

(263,208)

3,932,113

1.436.682

2018

Total

$ 11,055.093
1,868,188
801,642
50.000

509.229

105.288

8.959
76.971

100,772
161.852

14,736.992

14.738.992

4,847,201

2.530,152
2,172,388

2.048,214
728,119
945.391

13,271,465

1.749.700

15.021.165

(284,173)

(4,583)

(1881

(288,944)

3.397,772

823.285

$ 4.922,671 $ 182.916 $ 5.105.587 $ 3.932.113

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets S  (263,208) $  (288,944)
Adjustments to recondle changes In net assets to
n^ cash from operating actMlles;
Depredation and amortization 580.115 467;929
Loss on sale of property 6,481 4,563

(Gain) loss on Investment In limited partnerships (18,116) 188

Forgiveness of det)t (388,649) (75,971)
(Increase) decrease |n assets:

Accounts receivable (185,904) 265,199
Prepaid e)qpenses 5,509 (3.439)
Interest receivable - (4,480)
Due from related parties 44,240 66,149

Security deposits 5,151 (2,623)
lr>crease (decrease) In liabilities:

Accounts payable 145,829 (53,220)
Accrued expenses (106,905) (38,883)
Accnjed payroll and payroll taxes (16,792) 9,657
Other current ilabiirties 3,167 (13,125)
Refundable advances (12,937) (44,414)
Interest payable 49,547 -

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (152,672) 288.626

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVmES

(Increase) decrease in escrow funds (33,568) 5,846

Proceeds from sale of property 215,000 .

Purchase of property. (139,717) (142.791)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVTriES 41,715 (136.945)

CASH FLOWS FROM RNANCING ACTtVITIES

Proceeds from long term det^t 40,048 76,143

Repayment of long term debt (160,029) (112,612)

NET CASH USED IN RNANCING ACnVITIES (119,981) (36,469)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (230,938) 115,212

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,086,895 947,175

CASH TRANSFERRED FROM UMITED PARTNERSHIP 26,230 24.508

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  882,187 $  1.086,895

See Notes to Consolidated Rnanclal Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED CQMPAMIES

CONSOUOATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS ̂CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP:
Prepaid expenses.
Land and buildings
Furniture artd fixtures

Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits

Total transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP

Transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP;
Accounts'payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related parties
Long terrh debt

Total transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP

Total partners' capital from newly consolidated LP

Partners' capital previously recorded as investment in related parties

Total transfer of partners' capita! from newly consolidated LP

2019

$  203,408

S  (22,212)
(2,373,335)
(168,237)
(297,913)
(16.151)

$  121.699
20,347

85.181
1.332,075

$  1.559.302

$  1,344,776

91,906

$ 1436^82

2018

142,467

(12,328)

(894,504)
(96,338)

(164.110)
(11.467)

$ (2,877,848) $ {1.176.747)

$  10,610
11.199

s 326,062

$ 877,173

(53.888)

$ 823,285

See Notes to Consolidated Rnanclal Statements
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i. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED RNANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (the Organization) Is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in the Cheshire and
Sullivan counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the
areas of education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation,
housing, and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., and its related corporations. SCS
Mariagement Corporation, SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation,
SCS Housing Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described
below. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support service and
assisting individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them
overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from
governmental contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The con^lidated firiaricial statements include the accounts of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. and the following entities as Southwestem Conimunlty
Services, Inc. has both an economic interest and control of the entities through a
majority voting interest in their goveming board. All significant intercompany
items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic consolidated

financial statements.

■  SCS Management Corporation
•  SCS Housing, Inc.
■  SCS Development Corporation
■  SCS Housing Development, Inc.
■  Drewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
■  Jaffrey Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Jaffrey) - Sold 2/1/19
■  Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
■  Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene

East Side)
• Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)

Consolidation began 8/16/17
■  Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)

Consolidation began 6/30/18
"  Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, Limited Partnership

(Snow Brook) Consolidation began 5/01/19
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Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Southwestem Community Services, Inc.
and related companies have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require
the Organization to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net
assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net as^ts that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets
may be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of Directoie.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
irhposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary In
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds t>e maintained in perpetuity.

As of May 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

The financial statements Include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May
31, 2018 from which the summarized Infoimation was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time It is
recognized as revenue.

In-Kind Support

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received, creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.
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Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in confonmity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2019
and 2018. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

Notes Receivable

The Organization has two notes receivable from an unrelated third party. The
notes receivables are stated at the amount that is expected to be qollected at
year end. Interest is accrued at a rate of 4% annually. The balance of the
notes receivable and related interest receivable was $112,000 and $45,547,
respectively, at May 31, 2019 and 2018.

Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Cohcehtratlons

The Organization Is operated In a heavily regulated environment. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules
and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional
administrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31.
2019 and 2018, approximately 68% and 75%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from govemment agencies. The
future nature of the organization Is dependent upon continued support from the
govemment.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
wrhlch at times may exceed federaliy insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.
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Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates ail assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is
provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 - 40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5 -10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the tenns of grants received from
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds receiv^ from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31. 2019 and 2018
totaled $580,115 and $467,929, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Revenue.Recognition

Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts received for specific
purposes are generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses
and conditions are incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the
conditions being met are reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash
and other assets are reported as with donor restrictions If they are received with
donor imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, if a
restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the
Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.

Income Taxes

Southwbstem Community Services, Inc. and SCS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
Income tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryforwards totaling $1,012,604 and $915,425 at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset against future
taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS Development
Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $579 and $607 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset
against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire In 2022.
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The tax effects of the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31. 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $212,768 $137,408
Valuation allowance (212.768) (137.408)

■ Deferred tax asset £

Drewsville, Jaffrey, Troy Senior, Winchester. Keene East Side, Swanzey. and
Snow Brook are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes are not payable by,
or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are Included in the partners'
federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income tax retums with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes."
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for
measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements.
Management has analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on Its income
tax retums for all open years (tax years ending May 31, 2017 - 2019), and has
concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in generaliy accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an
entity-specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements. Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either dir^ly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.
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Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations v^ere there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those Instruments.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958) Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification,
deficiencies in Information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the
lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and
investment retum. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these
statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.

Furictlonal Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is prirriarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The indirect cost rate is 11.96% effective from June 1, 2017 through
May 31. 2020.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Joumal Prime Rate. The
line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May 31. 2019 and 2018,
the interest rate was 5.50% and 4.75%, respectively. There was no outstanding
balance at May 31, 2019 and 2018.
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NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following:

2019 2018

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96
Main Street). $ 145,647 $ 154,832

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street). 31,589 32,147

5.5% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $978
through March 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (People's United Bank,
Ashuelot). 20,672 31,143

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pearl). 244,505 244,505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a payment, or until
project is sold or refinanced. The note Is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43
Central). 376,363 376,363

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019 and
is now due December 2026. Under the

amendment, interest rate is 4.94% and monthly
Installments for principal and interest are $1,957 .
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank, Milestones). 146,515 162,223
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2019 2018

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured .
by real estate of the Organization (TD Bank,
Keene Office). 2,212,288 2,247,266

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on
contract. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balarice was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 63,000 63,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and Is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 45,000 45,000

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $2,463 including interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted in an

interest rate of 4.67% and 4.07% at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office/Community Way). 401,891 414,567

5.19% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (TD Bank, 45 Central
Street). 94,733 100,254
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2019 2018

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note Is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 125,000 150,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
112 Chariestown Road). 75,000 90,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing in annual payments in the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through
July 2042 at which time the remaining balance is
due. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 794,189

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of
the balance is forgiven ^ch year through 2032
when the remaining baiarice becomes due. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG, Second Chance). 344,536 363,677

6.99% note payable to a finance company In
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$652 through June 2019. The note Is secured by a
vehicle (TCF, Econoline Van). 1,293 8,741

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econoline Van). 19,287 ' 24,564
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2019 2018
Jaffrey - 30-year deferred note payable to the
Town of Jaffrey, New Hampshire. Payment of
principal and accrued interest at 1 % were deferred
until the note matures in June 2027. The note was

secured by land and buildings. The balance
included cumulative accrued interest of $53,651
(CDBG). Jaffrey was sold during the year ended
May 31, 2019 and the balance was forgiven. - 303,651

Jaffrey - 6% note payable to a bank In monthly
installments for principal and Interest of $485
through August 2027. The note was secured by
land and buildings (TD Bank). Jaffrey was sold
during the year ended May 31, 2019 and this note
was paid in full. - 41,099

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county In New Hampshire. Payments are
deferred until the note matures in June 2029. The .

note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG). 640,000 640,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficiency improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140,210 140,210

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county In New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December

2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900.000

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital improvements.
Beginning In 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years in
January 2026. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA). 185,899 178,172
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2019 2018

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund
energy efficiency improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA).

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple Interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principal
and interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage.

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
September 2043, payable in monthly installments
of $1,698, Including interest at 2.35% secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage.

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable in monthly installments of $2,002
including interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage.

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero interest
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (AHF), due June 2034, principal and
interest payable at the sole discretion of the lender
from the excess cash of the borrower determined

by formula, secured by the Partnership's land and
buildings, subject to low income housing use
restrictions for the 30 year term of the mortgage.

228,934 228,934

282,720

377,110

446,561

237,173
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Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable in monthly installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's
land and buildings, subject to low income housing
use restrictions for the 30 year term of the
mortgage note (NHHFA).

2019

50,436

2018

53,826

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of

the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 92,058 92,058

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under
the aforementioned agreement, the loan is due
upon demand with interest accrued at a rate of
11.67% for the period the funds were outstanding
(Federal Home Loan Bank). 150.000 150.000

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing costs 9,332,609 8,490,421

Unamortized deferred financing costs (18.9431

Less current portion due within one year
9,313,666
227.221

$ 9.086.445

8,490,421
216.438

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2019 is as follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Amount

$  227,221
121,051
115,864

115,596

118,605
8.634.272

Total
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NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-
cancelable lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2024. Monthly lease payments range from $60 to
$3,625. Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$144,880 and $136,963 respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2019 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

$

Amount

78,745

21,677

18,318

1,050

720

120

Total

NOTE 5 ACCRUED COIVIPENSATED BALANCES

At May 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had eamed and vested In the amount of $131,864
and $130,140, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing,
Inc. and SOS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SOS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners of ten limited partnerships formed to
develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services, Inc.. SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development. Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $14,151,000 and $15,553,000 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $35,831,000 and
$41,158,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, provides collateral on
these loans.

21



The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required
to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts,
if any, have not been determined or assessed by govemment audits as of May
31, 2019 and 2018.

NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, SCS Housing, Inc. managed
ten limited partnerships. Management fees charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled
$313,466 and $322,973, for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Additionally, SCS Housing. Inc. has advanced the limited
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entities totaled $59,102 and $188,523, respectively, at May 31 2019
and 2018.

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial Interests in the following companies:

Cityside Housing Associates, LP
Mariborough Homes, LP
Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP
Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP
Westmill Senior Housing, LP
Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing

Associates. LP
Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP
Pilot Health, LLC

2019 2018

$  (9,500) $  (9,492)
(11) 8

(12,503) (12,491)
(1.897) (1,715)

(21) (17)
222,842 222,846

78 90
- (31,190)

- (60,716)
(260) (243)

- (18.374^
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SCS Housing Development, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Cityside Housing
Associates, LP, Marlbonough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Wanwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Associates, LP, a 0.10% partner of Railroad Square Senior
Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner in Westmill Senior Housing, LP
during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

SCS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

The remaining 99.99% ownership interest In Swanzey Township Housing
Associates, LP and Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP were
acquired by Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending
May 31. 2019 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership Is included In
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
remaining 99.99% ownership Interest in Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP was acquired by Southwestern Community Service, Inc. during the year
ended May 31, 2018 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership Is
Included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31,
2019 and 2018.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was a 14.3% member of Pilot Health,
LLC during the year ended May 31, 2018. Pilot Health was terminated during
the year ended May 31, 2019.

Summarized financial Information for entitles accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31, 2019 and 2018. consists of the following:

2019 2018

Total assets S 5.745 $ 32.782

Total liabilities 2,454 47,461
Capital/Member's equity 3.291 (14.6791

Income $ 426 $ 84,713

Expenses 661 81.478

Net income (loss) S (2351 $ 3.235
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's
discretion and totaled $296,009 and $289,969 for the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

2019 2018

NNECAC-Annual Conference Fund

Stand Down

GAPSA/Varm Fund

Transport
HS Parents Association

EHS

5,973 $

91,908
47,260

6,575

31.200 _

21,327
4,963

118,401

Total net assets with donor restrictions S  182.916

NOTE 11 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the year ended May 31, 2019, the Organization realized forgiveness of
.  debt Income in connection with notes payable to Community Development

Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance Authority.
Forgiveness of debt income totaled $388,849 for the year ended May 31, 2019.

During the year ended May 31, 2018, the Organization realized forgiveness of
.  debt income in connection with notes payable to the County of Cheshire, HUD

and New Hampshire Housing. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $75,971 for
the year ended May 31, 2018.
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NOTE 12 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. acquired a partnership interest in three low-income housing limited
partnerships: Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook. The amount paid for the
partnership interest in Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook was $1 each, and
at the time of acquisition, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. became the
general partner. The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the
partnership at the date of acquisition:

2018 2019

Winchester Swanzev Snow Brook

Date of Transfer 08/16/2017 06/30/2018 05/01/2019

Cash

Security deposits
Cash reserves

Property, net
Other assets

$  24,508
11,467

164,110
990,842
12.328

$ 12,856
7,330

119,061

1,330,231
6.436

$13,374
8,821

178,852
1,211,341

15.776

Total assets 1.203.255 1.475.914 1.428.164

Notes payable
Other Liabilities

304.073

22.009

666,902

87.108

665,173
140.119

Total liabilities 326.082 754.010 805.292

Partners' capital 877,173 721,904 622,872

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an investment in related parties (53.888) 31.190 60.716

Partners' capital transferred 5 S 753,094 $ 683.588
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NOTE 13 AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The following represents Southwestern Community Services' financial assets as
of May 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $  882,187 $  1,086,895
Accounts receivable 1,245,826 1,095,486
Due from related party 59,102 188,523
Notes receivable 112,000 112,000
Interest receivable 45,547 45,547
Cash escrow and reserve funds 849.334 517.853

Total financial assets 3.193.996 3.046.304

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year

Due from related party (59,102) (188,523)
Notes receivable (112,000) (112,000)
Interest receivable (45,547) (45,547)
Reserve furtds f729.486) t444.980^

Total amounts not available within one year f946.135) (791.050^

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months ? ^.247,g?1 S 2.255.254

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$1,224,000 and $1,183,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 14 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that. provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
November 5, 2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIPANIES

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Corrimunity Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services. Inc., it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, \ftrherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minlmis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTES SUBRECIPIENTS

.  Southwestem Community Services, Inc. had no subreclpients for the year ended
May 31. 2019.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related consolidated notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 5, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s intemal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestem Community Services,
Inc.'s intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestem Community Services, Inc.'s intemal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the nohnal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services.
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of rioncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance arid the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organi^tion's intemal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Novembers, 2019
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire

32



Leone, ^
McDonnell
& Roberts

pROFnssioxAi.AS»K:i.vn()N

CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANT;

WOLFEBORO • NORTH CONW

DOVER • CONCORD

STRATHAM

SOUTHWESTERN COIVIIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Cpmmunity Services. Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies' compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May
31, 2019. Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of'auditdrs' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance In accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perfomn
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence atwut
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. complied, in ail material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that couid have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective intemal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s intemal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on corripliance for each major federal program and to test arid report on
intemal control over compliance In accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s
intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency In intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does riot allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their asslgried functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness In intemal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in intemal control over
compljance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal prograrn will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control
over corripliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in Intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of tbat testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Novembers, 2019
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. were prepared In accordance with
GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Intemar Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reports in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for. Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required fo be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services; Low-Income Home Energy Assistance, .93.568, arid U.S. Department of
Transportation; Fonnula Grants for Rural Areas, 20.509.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk audltee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY COMPANIES

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31, 2018.
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To the Board of Directors of wo[»:boro • north conway

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestem
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2018 and 2017,
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated statements of activities and
functional expenses for the year ended May 31, 2018.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services. Inc. and related companies'
2017 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated October 11, 2017. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative Information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2017, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the Schedule
of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

V

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 17, 2018, on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of jaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal cbntrol over financial reporting and
compliance.

September 17, 2018
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



SQUTHWFSTFRN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31. 2018 AND 2017

ASSETS

2018 2017

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable

interest receivable

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Lend and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Total property'

Less accumulated depredation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Invesbnent In related parties

Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities

Re^ndable advances

Current portion of long term debt

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT UABILITIES

Long term debt less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$  1,086,895
1,095,486

35,019

112,000

45.547

2-374.947

14,438,178

549,305

39.617
15,027,100

4.880.952

10.146.148

88,706

152,959

517,853

51,996

m

811,898

124,085

206,178

250,692

135,573

193,931
216,438

1,126,897

8.273.983

9,400.880

3,774,641
157,472

3,932,113

947,175

1,360,685

19,252

112,000

41.067

2.480.179

13,335,396

703,635
25.756

14,064,787

4.579.76Q

9.485.027

142,782

219,108

359,589

37.906

m

759,769

$  13,332,993 $ 12.724.975

166,495

233,842

241,035

148,698

238,345

211,313

1,239,728

8.087.475

3.243,933
153.839

3,397,772

$  13.332.993 $ 12,724,975

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVrnES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Unrestricted

Temporarily

Restricted

2018

Total

2017

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Government contracts

Program sen/Ice fees
Rental income

Developer fee Income
Support
Fundraislrtg

Interest Income

ForgIver>ess of debt
Miscellaneous

In-Mnd cor>tr1butions

$ 11,055,093

1,868,186
601,642
50,000

389,363

105,286

8,959
75,971

100,772
161.852

S

116,866

$ 11,055,093
1,866,188
801,842

50,000

509,229
105,286

8,959
75,971

100,772
161,852

%  9,722,823

1,862,236
661,932

265,000
400,116

80,170
6,699

90,148

140,537
162.666

Total reveruMS ar>d other support 14,617,126 119,866 14,736.992 13,392,827

.  NETASSETS RELEASED PROM

RESTRICTIONS 116.233 (116.233)

Total revenues, other support, end

net assets released from restrictions 14.733.359 3.633 14.738.992 mmz7

EXPENSES

Program services
Home energy programs
Education arid nutrition
Homeless programs

Housing services
Economic deveiopfnent services
Other programs

4,847,201

2,530,152
2,172,388

2,048,214
728,119
945.391

- 4,847,201

2,530,152
2,172,388
2,046,214

728,119
945.391

3,812.708
2,367,558

2.056,525

2,073,178

571.885
963.917

Total program services 13,271,465 • 13,271,465 11,845,751

Supporting activities
Management and general 1.749.700 1.749.700 1.776.106

Total ejq>enses 15.021.165 15.021.165 13.621.857

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

(287,806) 3,633 (284,173) (229,230)

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY (4,583)
- (4,583) (19,355)

(LOSS) GAIN ON INVESTMENT IN UMTTED PARTNERSHIPS (188) . (188) 132.782

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS f292.577) 3.633 (288,944) (115.603)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3.243,933 153,839 3,397.772 3,513,575

NETASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

UMITED PARTNERSHIP 823.285 823,285

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 4.067.218 153.839 4.221.057 3.513.575

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR $  3.774.641 $  157,472 3.932.113 $  3.397.772

Soe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemants
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SQUTHWESTgRN CQMMUNtTY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED CQMPANIgS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2018 AND 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTTVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile changes In net assets to
net cash from operating activities:

2018

$  (288,944)

2017

$  (115,803)

Depredation and amortization 467,929 415,720
Loss on sale of property 4,583 19,355
Loss (gain) on investment in limited partnerships 186 (132.782)
Forgiveness of debt (75,971) (90.148)

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivabie 265,199 (258,318)
Prepaid expenses (3.439) 4,161
Interest receivabie (4.480) (4,480)
Due from related parties 66,149 73,417
Security deposits (2,623) (1.945)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable (53.220) 11,248
Accrued expenses (36,863) 87,479
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 9.657 22,853
Other current liabilities (13.125) (32,998)
Refundable advances (44.414) 37.281

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 288.626 35.040

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Decrease (increase) In escrow funds 5,846 (18,222)
Proceeds from sale of property - 6,000
Purchase of property (142.791) (247.598)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (136.945) (259.820)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACnVTTIES

Proceeds from long term debt 76,143 106,019
Repayment of long term debt (112.612) (122.890)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (36.469) (16.871)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 115,212 (241.651)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 947,175 1,188,826

CASH TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 24,508
-

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  1.086,895 $  947.175

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2Q18 AND 2017

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for interest £

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACHVITIES

Property financed by long tenn debt $

2018

142,467

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP:
Prepaid expenses
Land and buildings
Furniture and fixUJres

Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits

Total transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP

Transfer of liabilities from nev/ly consolidated LP:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Long term debt

Total transfer of liabilities from newly oonsolidated LP

Total partners' capital from newly consolidated LP

Partners' capital previously recorded as Investment In related parties

Total transfer of partners' capital from newly consolidated LP

(12,328)
(894,504)
(96,338)

(164,110)
(11.467)

$ (1,178,747)

$ 10,810
11,199

304,073

2017

141.285

33,100

$ 326,082 $

$ 877,173 $

(53,888)

$ 823,285 $

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (the Organization) is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and iow-income households in the Cheshire and
Sullivan counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the
areas of education, chiid development, employment, energy and its conservation,
housing, and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestem Community Services, Inc., and its related corporations, SCS
Management Corporation, SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation,
SCS Housing Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described
below. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support service and
assisting individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them
overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues Is derived from
governmental contracts.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
and related companies have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestem

Community Services, Inc. and the following entities as Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. has both an economic interest and control of the entities through a
majority voting interest in their governing board. All significant intercompany
items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic consolidated

financial statements.

■  SCS Management Corporation
■  SCS Housing, Inc.
■  SCS Development Corporation
■  SCS Housing Development, Inc.
"  Drewsviiie Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsviile)
■  Jeffrey Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Jaffrey)
■  Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
■  Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene

East Side)
• Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)

(2018 only)



Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Accounting
Standard Codification No. 958-210, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Organizations. Under FASB ASC 958-210, the Organization is required to
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets,
and permanently restricted net assets based upon the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions.

Unrestricted: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.
Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of
the Board of Directors!

Temporarilv Restricted: Net assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed
stipulations that will either expire with the passage of time or be fulfilled or
removed by actions of the Organization.

Permanently Restricted: Net assets reflecting the historical cost of gifts (and
in certain circumstances, the earnings from those gifts), subject to donor -
imposed stipulations, which require the corpus to be invested in perpetuity to
produce income for general or specific purposes.

As of May 31, 2018 and 2017, the Organization had unrestricted and temporarily
restricted net assets.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May
31, 2017 from which the summarized information was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it is
recognized as revenue.

In-Kind Support

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.



Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2018
and 2017, The Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

Notes Receivable

The Organization has two notes receivable from an unrelated third party. The
notes receivables are stated at the amount that is expected to be collected at
year end. Interest is accrued at a rate of 4% annually. The balance of the
notes receivable and related interest receivable at May 31, 2018 was $112,000
and $45,547, respectively. At May 31, 2017, the balance of the notes
receivable and related interest receivable were $112,000 and $41,067,
respectively.

Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules
and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional
administrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31,
2018 and 2017, approximately 75% and 73%. respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from government agencies. The
future nature of the organization is dependent upon continued support from the
government.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.
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Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is
provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows;

Buildings and improvements 10 - 40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2018 and 2017
totaled $467,929 and $415,720, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts received for specific
purposes are generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses
and conditions are incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the
conditions being met are reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash
and other assets are reported as restricted if they are received with donor
imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, if a
restriction Is fulfilled in the same period In which the contribution is received, the
Organization reports the support as unrestricted.

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SCS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function Income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryfonwards totaling $915,425 and $840,803 at May 31, 2018 and
2017. respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset against future taxable
income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS Development Corporation
has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $607 and $629 at May 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset against
future taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2020.

11



The tax effects of the canyforwards as related to deferred tax assets Is as
follows as of May 31, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $137,408 $126,215
Valuation allowance f137.4081 (126.2151

Deferred tax asset . $ - $ -

Drewsvllle, Jeffrey, Troy Senior, Winchester and Keene East Side are taxed as
partnerships. Federal income taxes are not payable by, or provided for these
entities. Earnings and losses are included in the partners' federal income tax
returns based on their share of partnership earnings. Partnerships are required to
file income tax returns with the State of New Hampshire and pay an income tax at
the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for
measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements.
Management has analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its income
tax returns for all open years (tax years ending May 31, 2015 - 2018), and has
concluded that no additional provision for income taxes Is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an
entity-specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements. Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.
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Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there Is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated
among the program services and supporting activities benefited.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. The
line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May 31, 2018 and 2017,
the interest rale was 4.75% and 4.00%, respectively. There was no outstanding
balance at May 31, 2018 and 2017.

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2018 and 2017 consisted of the following;

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96
Main Street).

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street).

4.5% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $976
through March 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (People's United Bank,
Ashuelot).

2018 2017

$  154,832 $ 163,926

32,147 32,147

31,143 42,099
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Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pearl). 244,505 244,505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a payment, or until
project is sold or refinanced. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43
Central). 376,363 376,558

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank In monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2018 and
is now due December 2026. Under the

amendment, interest rate is 4.94% and monthly
installments for principal and interest are $1,957
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank, Milestones).. 162,223 177,050

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
rnonthly installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (TD Bank,
Keene Office). 2,247,266 2,280,750

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on
contract. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance Is still outstanding at May 31, 2018 and is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 63,000 63,000
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4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2018 and is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 45,000 45,000

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $2,463 including interest
through May 2039. Interest Is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted in an

interest rate of 4.07% at May 31, 2018 and 2017.
The note is secured by real estate of. the
Organization (TD Bank, Keene Office/Community
Way). 414,567 426,734

5.19% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (TD Bank, 45 Central
Street). 100,254 105,495

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note ]s
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 150,000 175,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
112 Charlestown Road). 90,000 105,000

I
Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Finance Authority in annual payments
In the amount of 50% of annual surplus cash
through July 2042 at which time the remaining
balance is due. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 794,189
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Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of
the balance is forgiven each year through 2032
when the remaining balance becomes due. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG. Second Chance). 363,677 382,818

3.99% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $355. The
note was paid off in May 2018. The note was
secured by a vehicle of the Organization (Ally. Kia
Soul). - 4,070

6.99% note payable to a finance company in
monthly Installments for principal and interest of
$652 through June 2019. The note is secured by a
vehicle (TCF, Econoline Van). 8,741 15,688

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally. Econoline Van). 24,564 29,572

Jaffrey - 30-year deferred note payable to the
Town of Jaffrey, New Hampshire. Payment of
principal and accrued Interest at 1% are deferred
until the note matures in June 2027. The note is

secured by land and buildings. The balance
includes cumulative accrued interest of $53,651

(CDBG). 303,651 300,645

Jaffrey - 6% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and Interest of $485
through August 2027. The note is secured by land
and buildings (TD Bank). 41,099 43,533

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Hampshire. Payments are
deferred until the note matures in June 2029. The

note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG). 640,000 640,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficiency improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140,210 140,210
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Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December

2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900,000

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital improvements.
Beginning in 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years in
January 2026. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA). 178,172 121,865

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority to fund energy efficiency improvements
through the Authority's Greener Homes Program.
Payment is deferred for 30 years, through August
2042. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA). 228,934 228.934

Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable in monthly installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's
land and buildings, subject to low income housing
use restrictions for the 30 year term of the
mortgage note (NHHFA). 53,826

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of

the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 92,058
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Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under
the aforementioned agreement, the loan is due
upon demand with interest accrued at a rate of
11.67% for the period the funds were outstanding
(Federal Loan Home Bank). 150.000

Less current portion due within one year

Year Ending
May 31

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafter

8,490.421 8,298,788
216.438 211.313

$8,273,983 $8,087,475

1, 2018 is as follows:

Amount

$  216,438
106,557

108,028
102,681
102,148

7.854.569

Total £8 490.421

NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-
cancelable lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2022. Monthly lease payments range from $200
to $3,521. Lease expense for the years ended May 31. 2018 and 2017 totaled
$176,479 and $179,178, respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2018 on the above leases are as
follows;

Year Ending
May 31 Amount

2019 $ 76,776
2020 22,372

2021 18,977

2022 15.618

Total £ 133.743
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NOTE 5 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES

At May 31, 2018 and 2017, the Organization accrued a liabiiity for future annual
leave time that Its employees had earned and vested in the amount of $130,140
and $127,577, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SCS Housing,
Inc. and SCS Housing Development, Inc. SCS Housing, Inc. and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners of ten limited partnerships formed to
develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services, Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $15,569,000 and $15,590,000 at
May 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $41,158,000 and
$41,027,000 provides collateral on these loans at May 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required
to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts,
if any, have not been determined or assessed by govemment audits as of May
31, 2018 and 2017.

NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31, 2018 and 2017, SCS Housing, Inc. managed
ten limited partnerships. Management fees charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled
$322,973 and $308,448, for the years ended . May 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Additionally, SCS Housing, Inc. has advanced the limited
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amount due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entity was $142,959 and $219,108 at May 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.
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NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial interests in the following companies:

2018 2017

Cityside Housing Associates, LP $  (9.492) $ (9,481)
Marlborough Homes, LP 6 30

Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP (12.491) (12,477)
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates. LP (1,715) (1.527)
Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP (17) (9)
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP 222,846 222,850
Winchester Senior Housing Associates, LP - 53,888

Westmill Senior Housing, LP 90 -

Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP (31,190) (31,183)
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing
Associates, LP (60,716) (60,709)
Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP -  (243) (226)
Pilot Health, LLC f18.374) (18.374)

. S  88.706 1

SOS Housing Development, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Cityside Housing
Associates, LP, Marlborough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Associates, LP, a 0.10% partner of Railroad Square Senior
Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner In Westmill Senior Housing, LP
during the years ended May 31, 2018 and 2017.

SOS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during the years ended May 31, 2018 and 2017.

The remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP was acquired by Southwestern Community Service, Inc. during
the year ended May 31, 2018 (see Note 12). and therefore the limited
partnership is included in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended May 31, 2018.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is 14.3% member of Pilot Health, LLC.

20



Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31, 2018 and 2017, consists of the following:

2018 2017

Total assets $ 32.782

Total liabilities 47,461 47,490

Capital/Member's equity (14.679) (14.350)

$ 32.782 ?

Income $ 84,713 $ 84,728

Expenses 81.478 81.515

Net Income $  3.2?? 3.213

NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's
discretion and totaled $281,784 and $274,815 for the years ended May 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes:

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund

WM Marcello GAPS Fund

Stand Down

GAPS/Warm Fund

Total temporarily restricted net assets

2018

21,327
12,781

4,963

118.401

2017

38,129

14,789

100.921

S  157.472 $ 153.839

NOTE 11 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the year ended May 31, 2018, the Organization realized forgiveness of
debt income in connection with notes payable to the County of Cheshire, HUD
and Community Development Finance Authority. Forgiveness of debt income
totaled $75,971 for the year ended May 31, 2018.

During the year ended May 31, 2017, the Organization realized forgiveness of
debt income in connection with notes payable to the County of Cheshire, HUD
and New Hampshire Housing. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $90,148 for
the year ended May 31, 2017.
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NOTE 12 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

During 2018, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. acquired a partnership
interest in a low-income housing limited partnership: Winchester. The amount
paid for the partnership interest was $1 and at the time of acquisition,
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. became the general partner. The
following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnership at the date
of acquisition:

Date of transfer 08/16/2018

Cash

Security deposits
Cash-reserves

Property - net
Other assets

Total assets

Notes payable
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Partners' capital

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an investment in related parties

Partners' capital transferred

Winchester

$  24,508
11,467

164,110

990,842

12.328

1.203.255

304,073

22.009

326.082

877,173

(53:8881

NOTE 13 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 14 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS ^
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
September 17, 2018, the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2018

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2018. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestem Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
.  commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
May 31. 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services. Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related consolidated notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 17, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial ReDortlna
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s Internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in Internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees. In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies. In internal control, such that there Is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described In the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies In internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during

26



our audit we did not Identify any deficiencies in Internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no Instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's Internal control or on compliance. This report is an Integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards In considering the
Organization's Internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable
for any other purpose.

September 17, 2018
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies' compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described In the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May
31, 2018. Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management's Responsibilitv
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilitv
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southwestern Community
Services. Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Malor Federal Program
In our opinion, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2018.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compjiance
Management of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance vyith the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, such that there Is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

September 17, 2018
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2018

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. were prepared In accordance with
GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. which would be' required to be reported in
accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies In Internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Intemal Control Over Compliance Required by the Unifonn Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services; Low-Income Home Energy Assistance, 93.568, and Head Start, 93.600, and U.S.
Department of Agriculture; Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants,
and Children (WIC), 10.557.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was determined to not be a low-risk audltee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2017

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31, 2017.
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1  Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Board of Directors - Composition - 2020-|

CHESHIRE COUNTY SULLIVAN COUNTY

CONSTITUENT

SECTOR

Anne Seattle

Newport Service Organization

Mary Lou Huffllng
Fall Mountain Emergency Food Shelf
Alstead Friendly Meals

Brianna Trombi

Head Start Policy Council

Parent Representative

open

PRIVATE

SECTOR

Elaine Amer, Clerk/Treasurer

Amer Electric Company (retired)

David Edkins

Town of Walpole

Kevin Watterson, chair

Clarke Companies (retired)

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education
River Valley Community College

PUBLIC

SECTOR

Jay Kahn
state Senator, District 10

Derek Ferland

Sullivan County Manager

Beth Fox

Assistant City Manager/
Human Resources Director

City of Keene

open



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Office of Strategic Intitiatives

Agency Name; Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

Program Name: WAP PY20

•  -

»  - 1, ,
i

Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel

Annual Salary Of Key
Administrative

Personnel

Percentage of
Salary Paid By

Contract

TotahSaiary,
, Amount PaidiBy

Contract

John A. Manning, Chief Executive Officer $107,016 0.00% -  $0.00'

Beth Daniels, Chief Operating Officer $65,000 10.00% $13.000.00i

Gabriel Leonard, Energy Conservation Manager $45,760 70.00% $32,032:00

i



John A- Manning

Summary ;Over 30 years of experfence with non-profit^anizations. as. both an
outside.auditor and presently Chief Financial Offtcerof a large
corhmunity action ̂ ency.

Expoctowco 201A Southwestern Community Service Inc.
Keene^ .NH .

Chicrf Execiitlvo Officer

Responsible fbr'overal) supervision, managerhent, monitoring and fiscal
reviewof Community.Action Agency social sennce,pr^rams'providing
services to low^ihcome. elderly, and handicapped residents of Sullivan
and Cheshire Counties. New Hampshlre.

1990-2014 Southwestern CommunityServices^lric.
Keene, NH

Chief Rnancl^ Officer

Oversees all fiscal func^s for a conimunity^ac^ a9^r^ proytd^
seryioK. to low and rnbd^e income individuate,
Starti Fuel Asstetahce, and multiple afrprdable hpuslhg projects.
Supervise a staff.of 7, wtth ah agency bucket of:ovef:$ 13,000.000. Also
oversees agency property managertient department, which, manages
oven300 units of affordable housing:

1985^1995 Keene State College Keene, NH

Adjunct Profossor

Taught evening accounting classes for their continuing ^education
program.

1978-1990 John A. Manning, 'Keene, NH

CertiflodPubllc Accountant

Provided puttie accounting services, to sn\afl arfo medium sl^.clients,
tndudir^ muHple nw-profit o^janizations. -'Perfomi^ certified audits bh
several clients, including Head Start and other, norn^rofit clients.

1975-1978 Kostin and Go. CPA's VVest Hartford,.Ct.

Staff Accountant

Performed all aspects of public, accounting for- medium '^ed accbuntirig
firm. Audited forge number of prhrately heW and TOnrprofrt'i^

1971-1975 UniversityofMass.

B.S. Business Admhtetration in Accounting

.Amherst..Ma.

Education American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Organizations NH Society of Certified Public Accountants



Beth Daniels

Experience

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Chief Operating Officer 03/2016-Present
•  Responsible for all day-to-day program operations of the agency
•  Supervise Program Directors, including WIC, Energy, and Housing Stabilization
•  Ensure that all state and federal regulations are followed while those in need receive a smooth delivery

of service

Director of Energy and Employment Programs 10/2008 — 12/2016
• Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor,

Senior Energy Assistance, Weatherization, HRRP, CORE, and Assurance 16 as well as the employment
programs Workplace Success, Work Experience Program, and WIA.

Workforce Development Director 11/2006 - 10/2008
•  Supervise, direct, coach, and encourage staff of six within four programs
•  Collaborate with agency staff, community members and state contract holders to achieve common goals,

including agency name recognition and program success
•  Perform all SCS Program Director tasks including PPRs and budget management

Families @ Work Employment Specialist 03/2006 - 11 /2006
• Managed a caseload of fifty (50) clients throughout the Keene, Claremont, Concord, and Nashua areas
• Worked closely with staff from Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and Southern New Hampshire

Services

•  Gained a strong working knowledge of all SCS programs for referral purposes

Second Start, Concord, NH
Career Development Specialist 11/2004 — 03/2006
•  Facilitated daily job-readiness classes and skill-building exercises
• Assisted participants with barrier resolution and the job search process
• Maintained participant records and completed reporting requirements
•  Received ongoing training in teaching techniques and learning styles

Nina *s Family Daycare, Swanzey, NH 10/2003 - 11 /2004
Day care Provider
•  Responsible for meal planning, payment records, supplies, and activities
•  Acquired CPR & First Aid certification

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Case Manager, Homeless Services 09/2002 - 10/2003
•  Responsible for all daily operations of housing program, rules, and regulations
• Completed weekly and monthly progress reports
• Coordinated house meetings, workshops, case conferences, and life skills classes

Case Manager, Welfare-to~Work 05/2000 — 09/2002
•  Provided job placement and retention services for caseload of forty (40) clients
• Gained working knowledge of Department of Health & Human Services, Immigration & Naturalization

Services, community agencies, and SCS



Education and Trainin£

Results Oriented Management & Accountability (ROMA)

Grant Writing Workshop
Cheshire County

Nonviolent Crisis Intervention

Crisis Prevention Institute, Inc.

Leadership Training
Tad Dwyer Consulting

Criticism & Discipline Skills for Managers
CareerTrack

How to Supervise People
CareerTrack

2016-2017

05/2012

2012

2010-2011

11/2007

11/2007

Career Development Facilitator Training
National Career Development Association
120-hour NCDA training

Certified Workforce Development Specialist
National Association of Workforce Development Professionals

Infection Control & Bloodborne Pathogens
Home Health Care

09/2005

06/2005

01/2003

Bachelor of Arts in Human Services

Franklin Pierce College
Graduated cum laude

05/2002

References Available



Gabriel Leonard

Professional Summary

strong client services, employee management, organizational, and problem solving skills in a fast-paced
environment, seeking employment with a company of shared standards and values.

Employment History

All Seasons Construction Corp. (Springfield, VT) Assistant Project Manager Nov2015-Present

•  Responsible for supporting Project Manager in the planning, management direction, project completion,
client satisfaction, and financial outcome of assigned construction projects.

•  Create estimates within Sage project management software.
•  Supports the Project Manager functions such as monthly forecasts, estimating, and budgeting.
•  Assists in ensuring that all documentation meets internal standards, procedures and specifications.
•  Ensures good, transparent and effective reporting and documentation.
•  Delivers all documents in a timely manner so that progress can be fully communicated..
•  Communicates with Site Manager for site project documentations.
•  Responsible for verifying blueprints and construction process on multiple build phases.

New Hampshire Employment Security (Claremont, NH) DVOP Employment Specialist Jan2015-Nov2015

•  Disabled Veterans' Outreach Program (DVOP) Specialist facilitated workforce services for veterans,
others eligible and employers.

•  Provided specialized workforce services for veterans, especially veterans with barriers to employment,
i.e., job development services for veterans, refer veterans to employment/training opportunities, provide
counseling/guidance, and assist veterans with other workforce services (resume assistance, labor
market information, job search workshops, one-stop career center orientation, etc.).

HURLEY OFFICE SOLUTIONS (Randolph. VT) Project Manager Nov 2009-Sep2014

•  Provided site supervision on a diverse range of commercial office installation projects. Tailored custom
solutions to customer needs.

•  Managed, hired and trained a team of seven employees. Created and implemented a customer service
standard for the organization.

•  Developed relationships with third party sales representatives to sell Hurley Office Solutions' services.
•  Negotiated bids, responded to RFPs and successfully closed contracts.
•  Analyzed the business and marketplace and created a strategic plan for the organization that included

new marketing, human resources, job site and documentation plans.

BASIC PSA (Johnstown, PA/ Kennebunk, ME) Snubber Removal & Reinstallation Technician

VC Summer Nuclear Power Statior) Oct 2012 - Nov 2012
Susquehanna Nuclear Power Station Mar 2012 - Apr 2012

•  Evaluated, removed & reinstalled nuclear snubbers, mechanical and hydraulic shock absorbers, to
prevent unwanted activity during scheduled power outages paying close attention to all safety protocols
and procedures.

IBZ CONTRACTING (Spring Valley, NY) Heavy Equipment Operator Jul 2008 - Aug 2009

•  Managed heavy equipment for a waterfront restoration and worked closely with EPA inspectors and
project engineers.

FULLTIME MANAGEMENT (New York, NY) Property Manager Jan 2008 - May 2008



•  Managed multiple residential properties, with responsibilities including general upkeep, small repairs
and tenant relations.

FINESTKIND HANDYCRAFTSMEN (Kitsap County, WA) Proprietor Dec 2004 - Jan 2007

•  Coordinated contracts for construction, successfully managed crew and contracts to ensure timely and
satisfactory completion of projects.

•  Provided services including finish carpentry, masonry, drywall, interior / exterior painting, residential
electrical and plumbing, landscaping, roofing, and decking.

UNITED STATES NAVY (Bremerton, WA & San Diego. CA) Nov 2002 - Dec 2007
USS John C Stennis, CVN 74, Kitsap Navy Base & Coronado Navy Base

Aviation Ordnance Specialist Supervisor Nov 2004 - Dec 2007
Aviation Ordnance Specialist Nov 2002 - Nov 2004

•  Instructed, supervised and evaluated the performance of 60 personnel and oversaw $1 billion plus of
highly sensitive weapons and navy specific heavy equipment.

•  Communicated effectively in diverse and hostile environments, both with personnel and upper
management under stressful conditions.

Education

GRANITE STATE COLLEGE (Concord, NH) B.S. Business Management, GPA 3.72 magna cum laude 2014

CPR CERTIFIED NATIONAL HEART ASSOCIATION 2014

ASSOCIATED TRAINING SERVICES (Portsmouth. NH) Heavy Equipment Operation School 2008

NAVY LEADERSHIP PROGRAM (USS John C Stennis. CVN 74) 2004


